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Mamelukes, but is now always selected from among the
highest officers of the Constantinople court, his term of
office being usually for four or five years. He is also
governor-general of Irak, and possesses supreme authority
from Diarbekir to Bahrein, though he doés not under
ordinary circumstances th the smbordinate
governments of Mosul a 3
The East India Cor
in Baghdad with
replaced by that of
A French consul i
Until recently
Mahometan city,
Sir H. Rawli
dry season, when
ordinary low-water on at the western bank of the Tigris
was lined with an embank f solid brick-work, dating
from the time of Nebuch , as the bricks were each
stamped with his name and titles; and it has been since
remarked that in the Assyrian geographical catalogues of the
time of Sardanapalus, one of the Babylonian cities bears
the name of Bagdad, and may thus very possibly represent
the after site of the eapital of the caliphs. Accordi 1z to
the Arabian writers, kowsever, there were no traces of former
habitation when Al Mansir laid the foundation of the
néw city. 1t was adorned with many noble and stately
edifices by the magnificence of the renowned Haroun el
Raschid, who also built on the eastern side of the Tiver,
connecting the two guarters of the town by a bridge of
boats. Under the auspices of Zobeide, the wife of that
prinee, and Jaffer the Barmecide, his favourite, the city may
be said to have attained its greatest splendour. It con-
tinued to flourish and increase, and to be the seat of ele-
gence and learning, until the 656th year of the Hegira
(1277 a.p.), when Hulaku the Tatar, the grandson of
Genghis Khan, took it by storm, and extinguished the
dynasty of the Abbassides. The Tatars retained possession
of Baghdad till about the year 1400 of our era, when it was
taken by Timur, from whom the Sultan Ahmed Ben
Avis fled, and finding refuge with the Greek €mMperor,
contrived afterwards to repossess himself of the city, whence-
he was finally expelled Kara Yusef in 1417. In 1477
his descendants were driven out by Usum Cassim, who
reigned 39 years in Baghdad, when Shah Ishmael the First,
the founder of the royal house of Seff, made himself master
of it From that time it continued for a long period an
object of contention betweea the Turks and Persians.
Tt was taken by Soliman the Magnificent, and retaken by
Shah Abbas the Great; and it was afterwards b eged by
Amurath the Fourth, with an army of 300,000 men.
After an obstinate resistance, it was forced fo surrender
1638 ap.; when, in defiance of the terms of capitu-
lation, most of tlie inhabitants were massacred. Since

sed to be entirely a
e of Al Mansur; but

* Besides the court of superior officers which assists the pasha in
the general administration of the province, there is also.a M ijlis, or
mixed tribunal, for the settlement of municipal and commercial affairs,
to which both Chr sh merchants are.admitted. Much,
of course, depends on the individual character.of the pasha, but, on the
whole; justice is fairly admini red, and with less disposition perhaps
t0 press on the non-Mussulman portion of the populstion than in any
other city of Asiatic Turkey. The Jewish and Christian communities,
indeed, from their wealth, intelli ence, and long standing in the.
country, enjoy an exceptionally favoarabie social position, and live on
terms of equality with their Mahometan neighbours.

Baghdad is also the headquarters of the army of Irak,-and regular
troops to the amount of five or six thousand men of all arms are
usually kept fogether in the city, while an equal force is distributed in
small garrisons in the Arab and Kurdish districts. Baghdad, after
paying all its expenses, remits zhout £100,000 per ammum to the
imperial treasury, but its ressurces are capable of almost indefinite
development, and there is indeed no reason why the valleys of the
Tigris and Euphrates should not, under an enlightened government,
yield a revenue fully equal to that of the valley of the Nila

that period it has remained under a nominal subjection
to the Turks. Achmet, the greatest of the pashas of
Baghdad, and the first who rendered thr_} pashalic inde
pendent of the Porte, defended the town with such courage
against Nadir Shah, that the invader was compelled to
raise: the siege, after suffering great loss. Baghdad,
according to Colonel Chesney, had 110,000 inhabitants
previously to the great plague of 1830; but in 1853
Mr Iayard estimated its population under 50,000, An
estimate made in 1872 on a census taken in 1869 rises
as high as 150,000, but this is in all probability an exag-
geration (v. Allen’s Indian Mail, 1874). Long. 44° 24" B
lat. 33° 21'N. Buckingham’s Travels in Mesopotamia
(1827); Sir R. K. Porter's Travels in Georgia, Persia,
Armenia, and Ancient Babylonia (1821-22) ; Kinneir's Ceo-
graplical Memoir of the Persian Emprire (1813) ; Chesney’s
Erpedition (1850); Rousseau’s Description du pockalik
de Bagdad (1809); Wellsted's Céty of the Caliphs;
Grove’s Residence in Bagkdad (1830-32) ; Transactions of
Bombay Geog. Soc. (1856). (m c. r.)

BAGHERMT, or Bacirur, a distriet or kingdom of Cen-
tral Africa, Iying to the S. of Lake Chad and S.W. of Bornu.
It extends about 240 miles from N. to S, and has a
breadth of barely 150 miles. The surface is almos
with a slight inclination to the N., and the gener
tion is about 950 feet above sea-level hari, a large
and always navigable river, forms the western boundary,
and throws out an important effluent -called the Bachikam,
which passes through the heart of the country. The soil
consists partly of lime and partly of sand, and is by no
means unfertile. Tn many parts not a stone is to be seen.
Negro-millet, sesamum, and sorghum are the principal
grains in cultivation, but rice grows wild, and several kinds
of grass or poa are used as food by the natives. Cotton
and indigo are grown to a considerable extent, especially
by Bornu immigrants. Among the trees the most import-
ant are the tamarind, the deleb-palm, the dum-palm, the
hajilij or Balanites egyptiaca, the sycamore, and the
cornel. The country often suffers from drought, and is
greatly plagued with worms and insects, e
all kinds, red, black, and white. The X
sors of beetle which does great damage to the crops, is 2aten
by the natives. A large proportion of the people have
their feet mutilated by the attacks of & small worm, which
takes up its residence in the first joint of the Lttle foe and
eats it gradually away. The inhabitants of Baghermi are
a vigorous, wellformed race, who, according to their own
traditions, came from the Far East several centuries ago.
They speak a language cognate with those spoken by the
Sara, who dwell about two degrees further south, and the
Dor, who are situated at the confluence of the Dyor with
the White Nile. On their arrival they soon extended their
power over the Fellata and Arabs already seitled in the
district, and after being converted to Mahometanism under
Abd-Allah, their fourth king, they extended their authority
over a large number of heathen tribes. The most import-
ant of these are the Sokoro, the Bua, the Nyillam, the Sara,
the Tumok, and the Busso. They are almost all in a.Tow
state of eivilisation, and practise strange superstitions—a
belief in 2 god whom they identify with thunder being the
greatest extent of -their religion. They are subject to
the barbarous raids of their Baghermian masters, who derive
from. them a constant supply of slaves with which to pay
the tribute demanded from them in their turn by the sultan
of Bornu. For our knowledge of this district we are prin-
cipally indebted to Barth and Nachtigal ; the former was
for some time a prisoner in Massefia, the capital.

See Barth, Travels in Northern and Central Africa in
184953, vol. iii., and Nachtigal, in Petermann’s Miztheil.
for 1874, and in Zeitsch. d. Ges. 1. Erdkunde zu Berlin, 1875-
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BAGHMATI, a river of Hindustén, which has its source
. in: the hills to the north of K4tmandu, the capital of Nepil,
whence it flows in a southerly direction through the district
of Tirhmt in the province of Behar, and, receiving the
waters of the Buchii on its north bank, and of Burd Gandak
on its south bank, joins the Gan after a course of 285
miles, in 25° 23" N. lat. and 86° 34’ E. long., about 8 miles
below the town of Monghir, but on the opposite bank.
BAGLIVI, Giorcro, an illustrious Italian physician,
descended from a poor persec i
born at Ragusa in 1669, and assumed the na
adoptive father, Pietro Angelo Baglivi, a wealth
of Lecee. He studied successively at the um
gna ; and after trav

of anatomy in the coliege of

in 1707, at the early age of thirt

his writings, which are all in

published in 4to in 1704, and has been

reprinted in the same form. An edition i

was published in 1788. Baglivi’s work De Fib

the foundation of that theory of medicine which wa:

tuted by Hoffmann and Cullen for the Humoral Patho
BAGNACAVATLLO, BarroLoMMEO, an Itali

who flonrished about the beginming of the

His real name was Ramenghi, but he receiv

men Bagnacavallo from the ill

born in 1484,

derhim he worked :
at the decorati the gallery in
is not known what portions are his wor
to Bologna he guickly took the lea
and to him were due the great
general siyle of what has 1
school. His works were consider
of desizn to some other produc
Raffaelle, but they were distinguish
and graceful delineatior. They wers
, who studizd
in some points imi
Bagnaecavallo’s wo
Madonna with CF
BAGNERES-DE
the Remans), the cap
ment of Haut:
the Adour,
pal watering-place
picturesque situati
cularly the valley of Can
gardens and handsome
neat and clean, and many of
mented with: marble.
numerous and varied, and are very
the digestive organs and othermaladi
is from 90° to 135> Fahr. The season commences in May
and terminates about the end of October, during which
time the population is more than doubled. Manu-
f2etures of woollen cloth, worsted, leather, potterw, and
toys are carried on, and marble from the neighbouring
quarries: i wrought in the- town. t
by the Romans, and destroyed by the Gothic in TS,
Bagnéres begins to appear again in history in the 12th
entury, and rose into permanent importance under the
reza of Jeanne d’Albert, the mother of Henry IV. Per-
#anent population, about 9500,
SAGNERES-DE-LUCHON, a small well-built town of
France, department of Haute-Garonne, pleasantly situated
in the valley of the Luchon, at the foot of the Pyrensces.
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It is celebrated for ifs sulphurous thermal springs, which
vary in temperature from 88° to 180° Fahr. _Tne bath-
ing establishment is one of the most complete in Europe.
The waters are employed with success in a .V:lmety of
chronic affections, and about 10,000 patients visit the town
annually. Resident population, about 3600.
BAGPIPE (Fr. musette, Ger. Sackpfeife, Ital. cornamusa),
2. musical instrument of unknown antiquity, which seems
to have been at one time or other in common use among
all the nations of Europe, and still retains its place in
many Highland districts, such as Calabria, the Tyrol, and
the Highlands of Scotland. The wind is generally supplied
by a blowpipe, though in some cases bellows are used.
These and other slight variations, however, involve no
essential difference in character or comstruction, apd a
description of the great bagpipe of the Highlands of
Scotland will serve to indicate the.leading features of the
instrument in all its forms. T& consists of a large wind-
bag made of greased leather covered with woollen e}otn; a
mouth-tube, valved, by which the bag is inflated with the
player’s breath; three reed drones; and a reed chanter with
zer-holes, on which the tunes are played. Of the three
drones, one is long and two are short. The longest is tuned
to A, an octave below the lowest A of the chanter, and the
two shorter drones are tuned e: ctave above the A
of the longest- drone; or, in other words, in unisen with
the lowest A of the chanter. The scale of the chanter
has a compass of nine not atural, extending from G
on the second line of the treble stave up to A in alt. In
mausic performed wupon this instrument, the players
duce among the simple s of the tune a kind of
iatura, consisting of a great number of rapid notes
iar embellishment, which they term warblers. No

pictorial representations and

ccurring in literature. The instrument probably
L out the bag, and in this
e (1 Sam. x 5; Isa.v. 12;

by the Egyptians, fhe

to bandage up his lips
TEPLTTOLLLOV, the Roman
Seems very

from. these

them

d, to;_-_::e-‘.u-‘;r
the strain on
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n to
of itself to disprove the
frument has always: been peculia tHand. :
BAGRATION, Perer, Princ incuished Russian
descended from the neble Georgiam family of
the Bagratides, was born im 1765. Im 1782 he entered
the Russian army and served for somey in the Caucasus.
In 1788 he was engaged in the siege of Oezacow, and after-
werds. accompanied Suwaroff, by whem he was highly
esteemed, through all his Italian and Swiss campeigns

He particularly distinguished himself in 1799 by

-5

| capture of the town of Brescia. In the wars of 1805 his
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achievements were even more brilliant. With a small force
he withstood for several hours the united troops of Murat
and Lannes, and though half his men fell, the retreat of
the main army under Kutusoff was thereby secured. A#%
Austerlitz he had the command of the advanced guard of
Prince Lichtenstein’s column, and at Eylau and Friedland
he fought with the most resolute and stubborn courage.
In 1808 he commanded in Finland, and in 1809 in Turkey,
and was almost uniformly successful in his operations. In
the famous Russian campaign of 1812 the corps under his
leadership had been separated from the main army under

Barclay de Tolly, and was defeated by Davoust at
Mohilev. Bagration, however, succeeded in effecting the

desired junciion at Smolensk. He was mortally wounded
in the bloody battle of the Borodino, 7th Sept. 1812, and
died one month later.

BAHAMAS, or LucayAs, a very nNumerous group of
islands, cays, rocks, and reefs, comprising 2n area of 3021
square miles, lying between 21°42" and 27° 34" N. lat. and
72°40" and 79°5’ W. long. They encircle and almost enclose
the Gulf of Mexico, stretching more than 600 miles from
the eastern coast of Florida to the northern coast of St
Domingo, and are traversed by only three na.viga?]e
channels—1st, the Florida Channel to the N., which
runs along the coast of the United States and lies to the
westward of the whole Bahama group; 2d, the Providencs
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Sketch-Map of the Bahama Islands,

Channels, passing "through the group to the N., and
separating the Gredat and Little Banks; and 3d, the old
Bahama Channel, which passes to the S. of the Great Bahama
Bank, between it and Cuba. 'The islands lie for the most
part on the windward edge of the Great and Little Banks;,
or of the ocean sounds or tongues which pierce them. The
total number of islands is 29, while the cays are reckoned
at 661, and the rocks at 2387. 'Che principal islands are
New Providence (which contains the eapital Nassau), Abaco,
Harbour Island, Eleuthera, Inagua, Mayaguana, St Salva-
dor, Andros Island, Great Bahama, Ragged Island, Rum
Cay, Exuma, Long Island, Crooked Island, Acklin Island,
Long Cay, Watling TIsland, the Berry Islands, and
the Biminis. Turk’s Island and the Caicos, which be-
long geographiecally to the Bahama group, were separated
politically in 1848. The formation of all the islands is
the same.—calcareous rocks of coral and shell hardened info

limestone, honeycombed ana perforated with innumerable
cavities, without a trace of primitive or volcanic rock ; the
surface is as hard as flint, but underneath it g’rﬁ..dllfﬂlf
softens and furnishes an admirable stone for building,
which can be sawn into blocks of any size, these
hardening on exposure to the atmosphere. The shores
are generally low, the highest hill in the whole range of
the islands being only 230 feet high. The soil, although very
thin, is very fertile. On Andros Island and on A})acq there
is much large timber, including mahogany, mastic, lignum
vite, iron, and bullet woods, and many others. Unfortu-
nately the want both of labour and of roads renders it im-
possible to turn this valuable timber to useful account. The
fruits and spices of the Bahamas are very numerous,—the
fruit equalling any in the world. The produce of the I..shi!ldﬂ
includes tamarinds, olives, oranges, lemons, limes, citrong

pomegranates, pine-apples, figs, sapodillas. bananas sower:
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80PS, melons, yams, potatoes, gourds,_ cucumbers, pepper,
cassava, prickly pears, sugar cane, ginger, coffee, indigo,
Guinea corn and pease. Tobacco and cascarilla bark also
flourish ; and cotton is indigenous, and was woven into cloth
by the aborigines.

It is a remarkable fact that except in the island of Andros,
no streams of running water are to be found in the whole
group. The inhabitants derive their water supply from
wells, the rain-water in which appears to have some con-
nection with the sea, as the contents of the wells rise and
fall with the tide upon the neighbouring shore. The Baha-
mas are far poorer in their fauna than in their flora. It
is said that the aborigines had a breed of dogs which did
not bark, and a small coney is also mentioned. The guana
also is indigenous to the islands. Oxzen, sheep, horses,
and other live stock introduced from FEurope, thrive well,
but of late years very little attention has been paid to
stock rearing, and Nassau has been dependent nupon Cuba
for its beef, and on the United States or Nova Scotia
for its mutton. There are many varieties of birds to
be found in the woods of the Bahamas; they include
flamingoes and the beautiful humming-bird, as well as wild
geese, ducks, pigeons, hawks, green parrots, and doves. Ths
waters of the Bahamas swarm with fish, and the turtle pro-
cured here is particularly fine. In the southerly islands
there are salt ponds of great valae.

The story of the Bahamas is a singular one, and bears
principally upon the fortunes of New Providence, which,
from the fact that it alone possesses a perfectly safe harbour
for vessels drawing more than 9 feet, has always been the
seat of Government, when it was not the headquarters of
lawless villainy. St Salvador (Cat Island, or as some sup-
pose, Watling Island), however, claims historical precedence
as the landfall of Celumbus on his memorable voyage.
He passed through the islands, and in one of his letters to
Ferdinand and Isabella he said, “ This country exeels all
others as far as the day surpasses the might in splendour;
the natives love their neighbours as themselves ; their con-
versation is the sweetest imaginable; their faces always
smiling ; and so gentle and so affectionate are they, that I
swear to your highness there is not a better people in the
world.” But the natives, innocent as they appeared, were
doomed fo utter destruction. Ovando, the governor of
Hispaniola, who had exhausted the labour of that island,
turned his thoughts to the Bahamas, and in 1509 Ferdinand
authorised him to procure labourers from these islands.
It is said that reverence and love for their departed rela-
tives was a marked feature in the character of the abori-
gines, and that the Spaniards made use of this as a bait to
trap the unhappy natives. They promised to convey the
ignorant savages in their ships to the heavenly shores,”
where their departed friends now dwelt, and about 40,000
were transported te Hispaniola to perish miserably in the
mines. From that date until after colonisation of New
Providence by the English, there is no record of a Spanish
visit to the Bahamas, with the exception of the extraordinary
cruise of Juan Pénce de Leon, the conqueror of Porto Rico,
who passed months searching the islands for « Bimini,”
which was reported to contain the miraculous “ Fountain
of Youth.”

The deserted islands were first visited by the English
in 1629, and a settlement formed in New Providence,
which they held till 1641, when the Spaniards expelled
them but made no attempt to settle there themselves.
The English again took possession in 1667, and in 1680
Charles IT. made a grant of the islands to George, Duke
of Albemarle ; William, Lord Craven; Sir George Carteret ;
John, Lord Berkeley; Anthony, Lord Ashley; and Sir Peter
Colleton. Governors were appointed by the lords proprie-
tors, and there are very copious records in the state papers

of the attempts made fo develop tne resources of the island ;
but the repeated attacks of the Spaniards, and the tyranny
and mismanagement of the governors, proved great obstacles
to success. In July 1703 the French and Spaniards made
a descent on New Providence, blew up the fort, spiked ths
guns, burnt the church, and carried off the governor, with
the principal inhabitants, to the Havannah ; and in October
the Spaniards made a second descent, and completed the
work of destruction. It is said that when the last of the
governors appointed by the lords proprietors, in ignorance
of the Spanish raid, arrived in New Providence, he found
the island without an inhabitant. It soon, however,
became the resort of pirates, and the names of many of
the worst of these ruffians is associated with New Provi-
dence, the notorious Blackbeard being chief among the
number. At last matters became so intolerable that the
merchants of London and Bristol petitioned the Crown
to take possession and restore order, and Captain Woods
Rogers was sent out as the first Crown governor, and
arrived at New Providence in 1718 Many families
of good character now settled at the Bahamas, and some
progress was made in developing the resources of the colony,
although this was interrupted by the tyrannical conduct of
some of the governors who succeeded Captain Woods
Rogers. At this time the pine-apple was introduced as an
article of cultivation at Eleuthera ; and a few years subse-
quently, during the American war of independence,
colonists arrived in great numbers, bringing with them
wealth and also slave labour. Cotton cultivation was now
attempted on a large scale. In 1783, at Long Island, 800
slaves were at work, and nearly 4000 acres of land under
cultivation. But the usual bad luck of the Bahamas pre-
vailed ; the red bug destroyed the cotton crops in 1788,
and again in 1794, and by the year 1800 cotton cultiva-
tion was almost abandoned. There were also other causes
that tended to retard the progress of the colony. In
1776 Commodore Hopkins, of the American navy, took
the island of New Providence; he soon, however, aban-
doned it as untenable, but in 1782 it was retaken by
the Spanish governor of Cuba. The Spaniards retained
nominal possession of the Bahamas until 1783, but before
peace was motified New Providence was recaptured by a
loyalist, Colonel Deveaux, of the South Carolina militia, in
June 1783. In 1787, the descendants of the old lords
proprietors received each a grant of £2000 in satisfaction
of their claims, and the islands were formally reconveyed
to the Crown. The Bahamas began again to make a little
progress, until the separation of Turks and Caicos Islands
in 1848, which had been hitherto the most productive

.of the salt-producing islands, unfavourably affected the

finances. Probably the abolition of the slave-trade in
1834 was not without its effect upon the fortunes of the
landed proprietors.

The next event of importance in the history of the
Bahamas was the rise of the blockade-running trade, con-
sequent on the closing of the southern ports of America
by the Federals in 1861. At the commencement of 1865
this trade was at its highest point. In January and
February 1865 no less than 20 steamers arrived at Nassau,
importing 14,182 bales of cotton, valued at £554,675.
The extraordinary difference between the normal trade of the
islands and that due to blockade-running, will be seen by
comparing the imports and exports before the closing of
the southern ports in 1860 with those of 1864, In the
former year the imports were £234,029, and the exports
£157,350, while in the latter year the imports were
£5,346,112, and the exports, £4,672,398. The excite-
ment, extravagance, and waste existing at Nassau during
the days of blockade-running exceed belief. Individuals
may have profited largely, but the Bahamas probably
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The CGovermmuent managed to pay its
amounting to £43,786, but crime increased, and
became very prevalent. The cessation of the
marked, however, by hardly any disturbance ;
no local failures, and in a few months the
and their crews depar New Providenee
ed into its uwsusl s f guietude. This, howe
fated to last long, for i tober 1866 a m
hurricane passed over the island, injuring
destroying the fruit-trees, and damaging
which had proved erto a source of profi
urricane, too, was followed by repeated droug
the inhebitants of the out-islands were reduced
indigence and want. Theres was an increase, however, T
the production of salt. The exports as a whole fell o
Those of wmsiive produce, which in 1866 had been
£77,604, were reduced in 1867 to £71,117, and the
remaining exports of 1866, amounting to £184,372, were,
in 1867, £156,131. The depression has continued almest
to the present time (1875). The public debt paid off
during the days of the blockade-running swelled again toa
sum of £54,161, 13s. 2d., and the revenue until very lately
was steadily on the decline. It was £47,5630 in 1870,
while the expenditure was £48,598, and in 1872 there

was a further decrease of revenue to £37,574, with an |

expenditure of £39,000, In 1873 there was, however,
an improvement. The revenue rose to £44,053, the ex-
penditure being only £42,737. The improvement in the
finances is due principally, it would seem, to the readj
ment of the customs’ duties. In a recent Blue Book it
is stated that the Government in 1873 increased the
duties on ale, brandy, gin, ram, and whisky by 50 per
cent,; on cigars and tobacco, by 100 per cent.; and on wine
by 200 per cent. As regards other articles the Assembly
at the same time rtelieved the general consumer by
reducing the 25 per cent. ad valorem duties to 15 per cen
They abolished the export duty on vessels in distress, a
they reduced the tonnage and wharfage dues. They a
abolished a Iicenco fee, payable hitherto by the me
employed as wreckers, and they repealed a special inco
The last colonial re
he sound financial
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The exportation of other |
frait was—of 2,000, valued at £3822; of |
Bananas, 7172 bunches, valued at £346 ; and about £700 | 1
worth of grape-fruit, shaddocks, lemons, limes, and melons.
One great and profitable buosiness at the Bahamas has
decreased, and is not likely to flourish 2gain. There has

been of late years a marked diminution in the number of
marine casualties, which in past times threw into the
ports of the colony a large amount of valuable Property,
of which a great part was frequently exported. The
erection of lighthouses, the diversion of trade from the
southern ports of America, and the increased use of steap,
have all tended to this decline of the wreckers’ trade, and
it is said that the people of Harbour Island, at one time
the great stronghold of the wreckers, have now all turned
their attention to the cultivation of pine-apples. In 1864
the number of wrecks Teported was, including completa
and partial, 67, while in 1871 it was but 39.

The colony is divided into 13 parishes, although the
division is now used for civil purposes 'only. Amn Act to
amend the ecclesiastical laws of the col was assented to
on the 1st of June 1869, and confirmed on the 7th of
October 1869, and the Church of England at the Bahamas
disestablished. The population of the islands taken at
the census of 1871 was 39,162 (being an increase in the
decennial period since 1861 of 3875), of whom 19,349 wers
males, and 19,813 females. With regard to rTace, it may
be said that-the native and coloured inhabitants now
enormously outnumber the white colonists. The last retum
showing the varieties of race was published in 1826 ; the
population was 16,033, of whom 4588 were white, 2259

|-coloured, and 9186 black; since then the proportion of
| coloured and black to white has increased. The health of

the colony has been improving of late years ; the death-rate
of 1872 was only 179 in 1000. The total births wers
1475 against 704 deaths. The climate of the Bahamas
has always borne a reputation for salubrity. The mean of
a saries‘ of daily observations of temperature for 10 yeass

is as foll
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l is heavy from May During the
winter months it is small, and fro month of Novem-
ber up to il the climat Providence is mosé

| agreeable, vants een taken of this for many
| years by t the mainland of Ameries,
| who can [ y yur dag ge from the icy
| winter of 7 t ammer of the

S of the lungs, and
have always been
nvalided from con-

g fgures represent approxk
number of persons  generzlly attending the
chapels of the several denominations:—

7370; Baptist, 7971; Church -of England)
terian, 300. There is no Roman Catholic

I of worship in the islands, and the members of
that church are very few in number. The constitution of
the Bahamas consists of a governor, aided by an executive
council of 9 members, a legislative council of 9 members
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and a representative assembly of 28 members. The
qualifications of electors ace full age, a residence of twelve
months, six of which must have been as a freeholder, or a resi-
dence of six months and a-payment of duties to the amonnt
of £26,0s. 10d. The gualification of members is possession
of an estate of real or personal property to the walue of
£500. The executive is composed partly of efficial and
partly of unofficial members; the latter have usnally a
seat in one of the branches of the legislature. There are
35 Government schools in the Bahamas, 5 of which are

- jn New Providence, and 30 in the out islands. These

schools are managed by an education board composed of
b or more members, with the governor as president. The
legislative grant for educational purpeses is £2200 a year,
exclusive of the salary of the inspector of schools, who is
borne upon the civil establishment on a salary of £200.
The number of children on the beoks is about 3006, and
there are 1200 in addition attending schools in connection
with the Church of England. It is caleunlated that abont
b5 per cent. of the children between 5 and 15 attend school.
The isolation of the settlements, the low salaries of the
teachers, and the indifference of parents, are great obstacles
to the spread of sound education in the Bahamas.

There are numerous lighthouses in the group, the prinei-
pal being at Gun Cay, Abaco. Cay Sal, Great Isaacks, Cay
Lobos, Stirrups Cay, Elbow Cay, Castle Island, Hoy Island,
and Athol Island. The chief institutions of the Bahamas
are to be found in New Providence. They include a savings’
bank, a public library, a well-conducted newspaper press, the
Agricultural Society, Bahama Institute, Fire Brigade, the
New Providence Asylum, Public Dispensary, St Andrew’s
Charitable Society, a provincial grand lodge of freemasons,
&e. There are also libraries,at Dunmore Town, in Harbour
Island, at Matthew Town. Inagua, at New Plymouth, at
Abaco, &c. (3. =. w. B.)

BAHTA, a province of the Brazilian empire, situated on
the S.E. coast, and extending from the Rio Grande do
Belmonte in the S. to the Rio Real in the N. It
is bounded by Sergipe and Pernambuco on the N., by
Piauhi on the N.W., by Goyaz on the W., and on the S.
by Minas Geraes and Espirito Santo. It has an area of
202,272 square miles, and its population is stated at
1,450,000. Bahia sends 14 deputies to the general
assembly of the empire, and 7 senators to the upper house,
while its own legislative assembly consists of 36 members.
Besides Bahia the capital, Olivenga, Branca, Jacobina, and
Joazeira are important towns. A chain of mountains,
broken into numerous sierras, runs from N. to S
through the province at the distance of 200 miles from the
coast, while the intermediate district gradually rises in suc-
cessive terraces. The maritime region, the so-called Recon-
cavo, is remarkably fertile, and is studded with thriving
towns and villages, but the inferior is often very dry and
barren, and is only thinly peopled in many places with
wandering Botacudos. The main sources of the wealth of the
province are cotton, coffee, sugar, and tobacco, all of which
are cultivated with. the greatest success. Mandioc, rice,
beans, and maize are grown ; also jalap, ipecacnanha, and
saffron, as well as oranges, mangoes, and various other

fruits. A large portion is still covered with primeval forest,

but the woodman is rapidly diminishing the extent. The
mineral wealth of the province is but partially explored and
still more partially utilised. In 1844 diamond mines were
discovered to the N. of the River Peraguass, and, till the
deposits near the Cape of Good Hope were brought to
light, afforded employment to a large number of garim-
peiros or ““ washers.” The discovery of amethysts at Catité
in 1872 attracted numerous searchers; and about the same
time coal was found in the island of Itaparica. Gold is
present in the alluvinm of the River San Francisco.

BAHTA, or, in full, Sax Sarvapor pA BAHIA DE TODOS
08 SANTOS, a large city, and, till 1763, the capital of Brazil,
is pituated on the S.E. ccast on the Bay of All Saints,
from which it takes itsname, in 13° 8. lat., and 38° 20" W.
long. Bnilt partly along the foot and partly on the top
of a steep hill, it consists of an apper and lower town, com
munication between the two heing effected by large flights
of steps, and since 1373 by a powerful hydraulic elevator.
The carrying of goods and passengers up and down these
stairway-streets affords employment to a large number of
negro porters and chairmen. ‘The lower town, or Praya,
consists mainly of one long and narrow street, with still
narrower and more tortuous lanes. The houses .are built
of stone, and many of them are several stories high. This
is the business part of the city. where are situated the
quays, docks, warehouses, custom-houses, exchange, and
arsenal ; and here the sailors, porters, and lower classes

-generally reside. The church of. Nestra Sefiora da Praya

is remarkable as having been built of stones that were
hewn in Lisbon and shipped across the ocean. The upper
city has wide and well-paved streeis, open squares, and
pleasant promenades, adorned with orange trees and bana-
nas. The most important is the Passeio Publico, which was
opened in 1814, and overlooks the beautiful bay. There
is no city in Brazil that can vie with Bahia in the number
and splendour of its ecclesiastical buildings, among which
the Jesuits’ college, now wused as a hospital, and the
cathedral, which is built of marble, are pre-eminent. There
are likewise numerous educational insiitutions, includ-
ing a lyeeum (in which Latin, Greek, French, and English,
mathematics, philosophy, &e., are taught), a theological
seminary, and a medical academy, which is supported by
the imperial Government, and has about 400 students. The
museum and public library also deserve mention. Among
the buildings connected with the civic and commercial acti-
vity of the city are the government-house, the court-house,
the mint, and the town-house; also the Alfandega, where all
foreign importations have to 1 ered, and the Consolado,
where all native productions 2 tered for exportation.
There are likewise a number of banks and eommercial asso-
ciations of various kinds. s long been a place of
great traffic. - The streets of city are very in-
conveniently paved, but the cit suburbs are now
connected by street railways, fwo running in the upper town
and one in the lower. Bomsim is the name of the northern
suburb, and Victoria that of the soutl ; the foreign
merchants for the most part reside in the latter. The
commerce principally consists in the exportation of cotion,
coffee, sugar, rum, tobacco,and rosewood,and the importation
of miscellaneous foreign goods. The value of the imports
in 1870 was £1,671,676, of which £885,206 belonged
to Britain. The exports of the same year were valued at
£1,790,928. The bay is one of the finest in America, and
is well defended by forts. The entrance is protected by
the large island of Itaparica, which hasupwards of 16,000
inhabitants, of whom more than 7000 are collected in the
town of San Gonzalo. A large number of these are em-
ployed in the whalefishery, which has greatly fallen off,
however, from its former prosperity.

-Bahia was visited in 1503 by Amerigo Vespucei. The
first settlement was founded and called San Salvador by
Diego Alvarez Correa, who had been shipwrecked on the
coast ; but the Portuguese governor who gave formal
existence to the city was Thomas de Souza, who landed in
1549. It owed its increase to the Jesuits, who defended
it against the English in 1588. Tn 1623.it fell into the
hands of the Dutch, who held it for two years. In 1823
it was surrendered by the Portuguese to the Brazilian
nationality. A revolution, which broke out in the city in
1837, was suppressed by the imperial Governmert. The
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